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The Pond-Weed house is located on the north side of the Boston Post Road, in the part
of Darien known as Noroton. The frame house faces south, just west of the junction of
the Post Road and Hollow Tree Ridge Road. It currently has a suburban setting. Adjacent
houses are free-standing and have recent construction dates.

The land on which the house is located slopes upward to the north and this topographic
feature has given the house its familiar name - "The House Under the Hill'", The building is
set quite close to the street, separated from it by a stone wall and a shallow yard.

Foundations are rough fieldstone, as is the massive central chimney. The stack has a
T-shaped plan and a shaped cap. A large tie-rod anchor in the shape of an S adorns the
south face of the stack. A noticable break in the slope of the rear roof line and the
T shape of the chimney point to the early addition of a lean-to kitchen and fireplace.

The main (south) facade is regularly divided into five bays. It appeaars to have
undergone some early 19th century remodelling. Federal features include the enlarged
windowframes and simple overdoor transom above the six-panel door. Sash is double-hung and
all are replacements. TFirst story windows have been lengthened at the top to their present
height, with 6/9 glazing. Second story sash are 6/6.

South and west exterior siding is beaded clapboards. The east side has been shingled
over ( probably 19th century).original clapboards remain beneath. The north side, lean-to,
has shingles with semi-circular butts. These are probably among the few examples remaining
on an early Conmecticut house. A remarkable survival is the first period back door -
vertical boards with rose-head nails set in a diamond pattern.

The plan is typical of a two-story, central chimney house with rear lean-to. It has
a heavy timber frame with exposed corner posts, which on the second floor are of "Gunstock"
shape. 1In all rooms except the patlor joists of the upper floor are exposed. Parlor
beams are cased. The kitchen and two front rooms on the first floor have panelled chimney
walls. Opening the chimney wall of the east room has revealed, behind an 18th century
brick fireplace, an enormous fieldstone fireplace with an unusually large chestnut lintel,
chamfered and with lambs-tongues. Evidence indicates that this was the original kitchen
fireplace, with bake~oven. It was reduced in size and panelled over when the lean-to
kitchen was added in the early 18th century. Parlor panelling and mantel date from the
early 19th century, as does panelling of the entrance hall. Stairs run right to left and
have 19th century banisters. There are no fireplaces on the second floor, where the
internal walls are covered with vertical beaded sheathing of wide pine boards. Examples
of early hardware are present. The third story (attic) exhibits characteristic common rafter
construction; access stairs were remodelled in the early 20th century.

The house offers a wrare example of a structure of the period without summer beams.
In the east room, first floor, seven 5" by 8%" joists join the chimney girt and the first
end girt. In the west room (parlor) plaster hides the same construction. 1In both east
and west chambers, five 8 3/4" by 7%" joists join the front plate to the rear plate,
paralleling the end girts, They are dovetailed in to the plates.
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The Pond-Weed House, with its large stone central chimney and sloping rear roof-line,

has the simplicity and sturdy vernacular vigor characteristic of early Connecticut
architecture. After it was erected, very probably in the late 1690s, this frame
structure received modifications, ca. 1716, which result in the existing two-story house
with rear lean-to., Notable features include the massive stone chimney with T-shaped
plan; an exterior wall of early shingles with semi-circular butts; a first period
exterior door; exposed framing, panelling and much early hardware. The house was
probably built by Nathaniel Pond and was sold by him to Nathaniel Weed in 1716, It
remained in the Weed family for 210 years.

In 1696 , Nathaniel Pond " Blacksmith of Branford" Connecticut bought the land on
which the Pond-Weed house is located (Stamford Land Records, Book A, 269). He sold this
land " with dwelling hous & barn" to Nathaniel Weed in 1716 (SLR, BookB, 248). Elmer
Keith, an authority on early Connecticut architecture and compiler of "0ld Houses of
Connecticut", a survey sponsored by the Colonial Dames, 1942, believed the house was
erected by Pond, since its framing features are similar to the Swain-Harrison house,
built in Branford in 1687,

Nathaniel Weedgthe second owner, was a member of a leading family which is still
prominent in the awea. He was a blacksmith and a large land owner. After his death
inl751 the house was inherited by his son John. It then passed in 1801 to his son,

John IT (still referred to locally as Gentleman John), at his death in 1852 he bequeathed
the house to his daughters Mary E. and Sarah Ann Weed. The building remained in the

Weed family until 1926 when it was sold to Agnes C. Bemish from whom it was acquired in
1948 by Walter L. Burrows. During the last fifty years the building began to show signs
of deterioration which were of great concern to the community. In 1976 the property,

at that time consisting of the house and .58 acres of land, was bought by the present
owners; since then needed repairs have been undertaken.

Beside its architectural importance and its connection with a leading family, the
fact that the building served as a tavern in the 18th century is a firm local tradition.
Ithas borne a second popular name "The Half-way House" from its site between Stamford
and Norwalk, by the ford and former sloop landing on the Noroton River. It has long
been held that "George Washington stopped here" and recent research by a local historian
(not yet published) has revealed supporting evidence.

This commercial use is of great local significance, since the only other tavern
recorded in the community was demolished in 1962 and the mill and blacksmith shop
were destroyed by fire in the 1920s - leaving this the last known commercial building
of the period.
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